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June 5, 2007 
 
 
The Honorable Bart Stupak, Chairman 
Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations 
Committee on Energy and Commerce 
U.S. House of Representatives 
2125 Rayburn House Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20515 
 
Dear Chairman Stupak: 
 

On May 16, 2007 I testified on behalf of the State of Alaska at the hearing entitled 
“2006 Prudhoe Bay Shutdown:  Will Recent Regulatory Changes and BP Management 
Reforms Prevent Future Failures?”  This letter responds to the following questions asked 
by yourself and by Rep. Inslee: 
 

1. What did BP tell the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) in 
order to justify its request that ADEC waive the pigging requirement in the May 
29, 2002 Compliance Order By Consent (COBC)? 

 
2. Why did ADEC agree to waive the pigging requirement? 

 
In support of my responses, several relevant documents are provided for your 

reference.  Some of these documents have only recently been received by the State of 
Alaska, and help significantly to clarify the events in question.  With the exception of the 
documents identified with the prefix “BPXA-ADEC” and the excerpts from the 
“Commitment to Corrosion Monitoring Reports,” it is my understanding that all of the 
attached documents have previously been received by the Subcommittee.     

 
In response to the first question, the short answer is that BP told ADEC that 

testing indicated its original report regarding solids in the oil transit lines (OTLs) was 
incorrect, and that only minimal sediment existed.  BP then told ADEC that it had made 
facility modifications which would allow it to pig the OTLs at any time in the future.    

 
The state’s previous response on this issue is captured in the October 16, 2006 

letter from ADEC Commissioner Kurt Fredriksson to Chairman Barton providing 
information on the COBC.  The requirement that BP pig the pipeline segments was 
included in the COBC as a result of BP’s earlier report that solids had been discovered in 
the OTLs that could interfere with tests of the leak detection system.  However, in August 
2002, after the COBC was entered into, BP notified ADEC that flow meter testing 
indicated that in fact only minimal sediment existed.  This information sets forth BP’s 
position that its earlier sediment estimates had been incorrect such that pigging the 
OTLs as a prerequisite to testing the leak detection system was no longer necessary. The 
attached August 9, 2002 letter from Gary Campbell to Lydia Miner, and Ms. Miner’s 
August 14, 2002 response further support this conclusion.  The October 13, 2002 letter 
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from Kevin Gaynor on this issue includes as attachments additional internal BP 
documents attempting to reconcile BP’s original representations to ADEC and BP’s 
subsequent retraction of its statements regarding sediment levels following additional 
ultrasonic testing.  Last, BP’s October 2002 internal timeline summarizes events relating 
to the leak detection requirements, and draws from internal BP e-mail discussing this 
issue. 
 

The “Billie Garde Report,” in particular pages 16-22, sheds additional light on BP’s 
inconclusive determination regarding whether sediment existed in the OTLs.  
Importantly, none of the correspondence or data underlying the debate was shared with 
ADEC or any other Alaska agency until recently.  The Garde Report also does not address 
the fact that ADEC was ultimately told that only minimal sediment existed in the OTLs. 

 
Finally, I draw your attention to key statements in several of the “Commitment to 

Corrosion Monitoring” reports submitted by BP each year pursuant to the Charter 
Agreement.  (The full reports are available at the following website:  
http://www.dec.state.ak.us/spar/ipp/nscharter.htm .)  These reports focused on well 
lines and flow lines, only reporting on the OTLs by exception, and then only briefly.  
However, the reports for 2002, 2003, and 2004 did specifically address the issue of 
pigging the OTLs. In those reports, BP informed the state that “periodic maintenance 
pigging” was part of its corrosion mitigation plan for “export oil” lines, i.e., the OTLs.  We 
now know that no maintenance pigging had been done on the Western Operating Area 
OTLs since 1998, and on the Eastern Operating Area OTLs since 1990.  However, since 
BP informed ADEC in Mr. Campbell’s August 9, 2002 letter that it had made 
modifications which would allow it to pig the OTLs at any time in the future without 
further facility modifications, and subsequently stated that periodic maintenance pigging 
was in fact being performed on the OTLs, ADEC had no reason to believe that sediment 
build-up was an ongoing problem on those lines.  This answers your second question. 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide additional information in response to 

your questions, and for the opportunity to appear before the Subcommittee. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Jonne Slemons 
Petroleum Systems Integrity Office Coordinator 
 
 
Enclosures: 
 Compliance Order By Consent, Consent Order No. 02-138-10 
 October 16, 2006 Fredriksson/ADEC Letter to Hon. Joe Barton 
 August 9, 2002 Campbell Letter to L. Miner/ADEC 
 August 14, 2002 Miner/ADEC Letter to G. Campbell 
 November 26, 2002 Conrad letter to C. Leonard/ADEC 

March 25, 2003 Bronson Letter to J. Mach/ADEC 
 April 3, 2003 Hutmacher/ADEC Letter to J. Fritts 
 October 13, 2006 Gaynor Letter to Snowdon, Knauer 
 February 13, 2002 Phillips Letter to M. Barnes 
 January 31, 2002 Conrad Letter to C. Leonard/ADEC, with attachments 
 October 19, 2002 Campbell E-mail to Phillips, Blankenship, Conrad 
 September 16, 2002 Jacobsen E-mail to Phillips, with attachments  
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Enclosures, cont: 
 

November 18, 2002 Phillips Letter to M. Barnes 
 October 1, 2001 Campbell Letter to R. Watkins, with attachments 
 “Redacted Interim Report of Investigation” by Garde and Clifford 
 “GPB Leak Detection Summary 10-13-2002” 
 October 18, 2002 Bruchie E-mail to Neill 
 Excerpt, “Commitment to Corrosion Monitoring, Year 2002” 
 Excerpt, “Commitment to Corrosion Monitoring, Year 2003” 
 Excerpt, “Commitment to Corrosion Monitoring, Year 2004” 
 
cc (w/enclosures): 
 The Honorable Sarah Palin, Governor, State of Alaska 
 The Honorable Ted Stevens, Senator, U.S. Senate 
 The Honorable Lisa Murkowski, Senator, U.S. Senate 
 The Honorable Don Young, Representative, U.S. House of Representatives 
 Vice Admiral Thomas J. Barrett, USCG (Ret.), Deputy Secretary, U.S. 

Department of Transportation 
Stacey Gerard, Chief of Pipeline Safety, Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety 

Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation 
 Commissioner Thomas Irwin, Alaska Department of Natural Resources 
 John Katz, Director, Alaska Governor’s Office, Washington, D.C. 
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